ALASKA STATE LEG SLATURE
HOUSE RESOURCES STANDI NG COW TTEE
February 2, 2005
1:11 p.m

VEMBERS PRESENT

Representative Jay Ranras, Co-Chair

Represent ati ve Ral ph Samuel s, Co-Chair
Representative JimElKkins

Representative Carl Gatto

Representative Gabriell e LeDoux

Representative Kurt O son

Represent ati ve Paul Seaton

Representative Harry Crawford (via tel econference)
Representative Mary Kapsner

MEMBERS ABSENT
Al l nmenbers present
COMWM TTEE CALENDAR

HOUSE BILL NO. 76

"An Act relating to the Big Gane Commercial Services Board and
to the regulation of big ganme hunting services and
transportation services; and providing for an effective date.”

- MOVED HB 76 OQUT OF COW TTEE

HOUSE Bl LL NO. 107

"An Act providing for the award of full actual attorney fees and
costs to a person aggrieved by unlawful obstruction or hindrance
of hunting, fishing, or viewng of fish or ganme; anending Rules
79 and 82, Alaska Rules of GCvil Procedure; and anending Rule
508, Al aska Rul es of Appellate Procedure.”

- HEARD AND HELD
PREVI QUS COW TTEE ACTI ON
BILL: HB 76

SHORT TITLE: BI G GAME SERVI CES & COW SERVI CES BD
SPONSOR: REPRESENTATI VE SAMUELS

01/ 18/ 05 (H READ THE FIRST TIME - REFERRALS
01/ 18/ 05 (H) RES, FIN

HOUSE RES COW TTEE -1- February 2, 2005



02/ 02/ 05 (H) RES AT 1:00 PM CAPI TOL 124

BILL: HB 107
SHORT TI TLE: ATTY FEES: HUNTI NG FI SHI NG | NTERFERENCE
SPONSOR:  REPRESENTATI VE RAMRAS

01/ 24/ 05 (H READ THE FI RST TIME - REFERRALS
01/ 24/ 05 (H RES, JUD
02/ 02/ 05 (H) RES AT 1:00 PM CAPI TOL 124

W TNESS REG STER

HENRY WEBB, St af f

to Representative Ral ph Sanuel s

Al aska State Legislature

Juneau, Al aska

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Presented HB 76 on behalf of Representative
Sanuel s, sponsor.

PAT DAVI DSON, Legislative Auditor

Legi sl ative Audit Division

Al aska State Legislature

Juneau, Al aska

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Explained the purpose and outcome of an
audit regarding issues covered in HB 76.

RI CK URION, Director

Di vi sion of Cccupational Licensing

Departnent of Comrerce, Community, & Econom c Devel opnent
Juneau, Al aska

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in support of HB 76.

PAUL JOHNSON, Cuide
Juneau, Al aska
POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in support of HB 76.

BOBBY FI THI AN, Executive D rector

Al aska Professional Hunters Associ ation

Lower Tonsi na, Al aska

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in support of HB 76.

EMORY CHUCK WHEELER, Cui de

None, Al aska

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified that HB 76 is an infringenent on
the guiding industry; questioned whether there would be noney
for enforcenent.

HOUSE RES COW TTEE - 2- February 2, 2005



MATT ROBUS, Director

Division of WIldlife Conservation

Al aska Departnment of Fish & Gane

Juneau, Al aska

PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in favor of HB 76.

ROB HARDY, Cui de

Nel chi na Basin, Al aska

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified that HB 76 did not go far enough
in reducing user conflicts and in advancing user fees to help
fund ADF&G

JI' M POUND, St af f

to Representative Jay Ranras

Al aska State Legislature

Juneau, Al aska

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Presented HB 107 on behal f of Representative
Ranr as, sponsor.

LANCE NELSON, Seni or Assistance Attorney Ceneral

Nat ural Resources Section

Ofice of the Attorney Ceneral

Departnent of Law

Anchor age, Al aska

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Reconmended text changes to HB 107.

JENNI FER YUHAS, Executive Director

Al aska CQut door Counci |

Fai r banks, Al aska

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in support of HB 107.

ACTI ON NARRATI VE

COCHAIR JAY RAWMRAS called the House Resources Standing
Commttee neeting to order at 1:12:52 PM Represent ati ves
LeDoux, Elkins, Crawford (via teleconference), Ranras, Sanuels,
Seaton, Oson, and Gatto were present at the call to order.
Representati ve Kapsner arrived as the neeting was in progress.

HB 76-BI G GAME SERVI CES & COW SERVI CES BD

CO CHAI R RAMRAS announced that the first order of business would
be HOUSE BILL NO 76 "An Act relating to the Big Gane Commerci al
Services Board and to the regulation of big ganme hunting
services and transportation services; and providing for an
effective date."

HOUSE RES COW TTEE - 3- February 2, 2005



1:13: 38 PM

HENRY WEBB, Staff to Representative Ralph Sanmuels, clarified
that HB 76 re-establishes the sunsetted Big Gane Conmerci al
Services Board which oversaw the professional hunting and
transporting industry. Functions of this board are currently in
the Division of Occupational Licensing. When the board was
allowed to sunset in the early 1990s, the powers of the forner
board were watered down. M. Whbb said that this bill is
designed to "put sonme backbone back"” into the oversight of the
prof essional hunting industry. An audit report in 2003 and a
request from the Board of Gane were the incentives for this
| egi sl ati on.

1:15:17 PM
MR. WEBB stated that an identical bill died in commttee |ast
year. The re-created board will be made up of two |icensed

guides, two licensed transporters, one nenber selected by the
Board of Gane, one representing private |andholders, and one

representing the public. He said the board will be able to
establish a code of ethics. Violations of federal law will cone
under oversight of the board, and the board will be allowed to
i npl enent training courses for assistant guides. The bill also

raises civil penalties from $1,000 to $5,000, and it requires
guides and transporters to obtain perm ssion before entering
private, state, or federal |and to conduct business.

1:17:22 PM

MR. WEBB explained that guides will be limted to three guide-
use areas within a calendar year, and the board is given the
authority to anend the guide-use areas, allowing a guide
additional areas if the areas are part of a predator control
pr ogram He said the board will also be allowed to adopt
transporter-use areas.

1:17:59 PM

REPRESENTATI VE GATTO asked if HB 76 is the sanme bill from 2003.
MR. VEEBB answer ed yes.

REPRESENTATI VE LEDOUX asked what the rationale is for only three
gui de ar eas.

HOUSE RES COW TTEE -4- February 2, 2005



MR. WEBB said it keeps people from switching around during the
year.

REPRESENTATI VE ELKINS inquired if a guide selected three areas
woul d the areas be exclusive to that guide.

MR. WEBB responded that guides would not be able to nove out of
sel ected areas but they would not be granted exclusive rights.

REPRESENTATI VE LEDOUX asked why that is inportant.

MR. WEBB said he would defer to the ADF&G He added that nmany
of the provisions in the bill have been worked out in detail by
the departnment, the D vision of GOccupational Licensing, the
Department of Public Safety, the Board of Ganme, and the guiding
i ndustry.

1: 20: 54 PM

REPRESENTATI VE SEATON asked if the $5,000 fine is in line with
civil penalties that other boards have the authority to inpose.

MR. WEBB deferred the question to the Departnment of COccupational
Li censi ng.

REPRESENTATI VE OLSON expressed that the transporter section has
| oose |anguage, and he wondered if +the reporting wll be
mandatory for transporters.

CO CHAIR SAMUELS said it will be nmandatory, and that the report
is one of the points of the |egislation.

REPRESENTATI VE SEATON wanted a definition of a transporter and
if the language excludes people who transport hunters as a favor
or for shared fuel costs.

1:23: 52 PM

MR. WEBB referred Representative Seaton to the definitions
begi nning on page 20 of the bill

CO CHAIR SAMUELS said persons taking friends out and air taxis
are not regul ated under this |egislation.

MR. VEBB pointed out that l[ine 17 defines an air taxi.

1:25: 43 PM

HOUSE RES COW TTEE - 5- February 2, 2005



REPRESENTATI VE SEATON wanted re-assurance that friends or
sonmeone who is only conpensated for fuel won't be considered a
transporter.

CO CHAIR SAMJELS said that the definition of a transporter is
the sane today as it is in the bill, and he added that "if |
take you out in my cub to go caribou hunting and we split the
cost of the gas, that is certainly not the intent" of the bill

1: 27: 13 PM

PAT DAVI DSON, Legislative Auditor, Legislative Audit Division,
told the commttee that the purpose of the division s audit was
t hr eef ol d: 1) to determne the inpact of not having a
professional guide and transporter |licensing board on the
enf or cenent of gui di ng st at ut es, 2) to assess t he
appropriateness of the current fine limt, and 3) to assess the
adequacy of the current reporting requirenents for guides and
transporters. She reported that current oversight is done by
various |and managers, such as the state, National Park Service
(NPS), United States Fish and WIldlife Service (FW5), United
States Forest Service (USFS), and Bureau of Land Managenent
(BLM . Al'l agencies have expressed a desire for a centralized
regul at ory board.

V5. DAVIDSON said client surveys showed that there are consuner

protection issues wth the industry. The audit division
concluded that statutory changes to include best practices are
warranted for consunmer protection and safety. She said a re-

established board would provide a nore dynamc regulatory
regine, and it would enhance professionalism in the industry.
She recommended that a new board create conpetency requirenents
for |icensure. Regarding fines, she said, the research found
that they were once set at $30,000, and currently they are
limted to $1, 000. Big gane hunts are expensive, she said, and
the financial reward for the violation does not conpare well to
the fine if one gets caught.

1:31: 54 PM

RICK URION, Director, Dvision of CQCccupational Li censi ng,
Departnent of Conmerce, Community, & Econom c Devel opnent. The
bill is a good start for addressing the many problens in the
commercial hunting industry. But, he said, the bill is lacking

in enforcenent, and he would like to work with the legislature
as the bill noves al ong.

HOUSE RES COW TTEE - 6- February 2, 2005



1: 33: 25 PM

REPRESENTATI VE LEDOUX asked why the legislation [imts guides to
three hunting units.

MR. URION responded that because wildlife is a limted resource,
restricting hunters to three areas allows sone control
Establishing the units before the hunts occur helps regulators
know where people are and inproves the quality of the hunt
because gui des can | earn where other guides are.

REPRESENTATI VE ELKINS asked if the size of the fine is a
deterrent to violations.

MR URION said it depends on the "size of the person's wallet."
QO her fines are considerably higher, he said. A realtor was
recently fined $25, 000.

REPRESENTATI VE SEATON requested a definition of transportation
service, again wondering if friends can take friends hunting
wi t hout bei ng regul at ed.

1:36: 19 PM

MR URION said "we will nake sure"” that will not happen.

1:36: 45 PM

PAUL JOHNSON, Cuide, told the commttee that guiding is a big
i ndustry economcally, and it is particularly inportant in rura

Al aska. He stressed that "it is tinme to nove forward" on the
bill. He explained howthe limt of three hunting areas canme to
be in the 1970's, and that it is a very carefully determ ned
"piece of the puzzle." He said this bill was put together wth

a task force, and it doesn't change the definition of who is a
transporter. This has been a |ong process, he said, and we need
to nove forward. "It is the best thing for the residents of the
state,” he opi ned.

1:40: 15 PM

REPRESENTATI VE GATTO asked about the bill's history.

MR, JOHNSON said that in different years the bill got held up in
different places in the |egislature.

HOUSE RES COW TTEE -7- February 2, 2005



BOBBY FI THI AN, Executive Director, Al aska Professional Hunters
Associ ation, Lower Tonsina, Al aska, has owned a fam |y guiding
busi ness for twenty years. He stated that HB 76 is about giving
proper stewardship to one of Alaska's earliest industries. He
added that standards are weaker than at any tine in history, and
integrity has dimnished. He stated that wnners in the
existing industry are the users who care little for wildlife and
are only in the business for the nobney. He and his w fe guide
in order to share Alaska's wildlife, but at this point they
don't see it as a viable business to transfer to their children.
M. Fithian believes the bill is a significant start, and he
supports it.

1: 44: 36 PM
CO- CHAI R SAMUELS asked how much a brown bear hunt costs.

MR. FITH AN answered that industry standards range from $9, 000
to $16, 000.

REPRESENTATI VE GATTO asked M. Fithian why he can't pass his
busi ness to his son.

MR. FI TH AN responded that his three sons have been guides, but
they recognize that there is no econom c sustainability in the
industry in the way it is currently being nmanaged in the state.

REPRESENTATI VE GATTO said he was concerned that there was a
| egal bl ock to prevent parents from passing on their business to
their offspring, but "what you're saying is it is just not
economc for a son to assune the work you are doing--and
survive."

MR. FI TH AN said "the | egal block is stewardship."

COCHAIR RAMRAS asked how the bill nmakes the business
sust ai nabl e and viable to pass on to the next generation.

1: 47:55 PM

MR. FI THI AN di scussed the history of the guiding industry. He
said there is no accountability on certain federally and
privately managed l|ands and that licensing standards have
rel axed. "One operator, many tinmes, is using nine, or even
twelve different” areas, he reported, and there is no limt to
the anmount of guides for the hunting units, creating situations
where guides are "working over the top" of others. He said this

HOUSE RES COW TTEE - 8- February 2, 2005



di mnishes the clients' experiences, and over time they wll
"start taking their dollars sone place el se other than Al aska."

REPRESENTATI VE SEATON referred to witten testinony from anot her
gui de requested that subsection (f) be taken out because he
thinks the predator control allowance wll cause problens.
Representative Seaton asked how critical that provision is to
M. Fithian.

1:50: 37 PM
MR FITH AN replied that it is a conplex question. He said that

the bears that are sought for predator control are not the ones
sought by non-resident hunters because they are often smal

bears, nocturnal bears, or sows wth cubs. The additional
hunting area allowed by the provision "does not create a big
horizon for us." He said that "those of us that have tried" to
find the bears "that are supposedly killing these animals--we're
not finding them" He added that for guides who are given these
extra areas, "it isn't going to be a winning economc boon." He

warned that he thought the provision could becone an abuse of
the three-area system

1: 52: 18 PM

REPRESENTATI VE  SEATON  asked i f t he provi si on wi | be
i neffective.

MR, FITHI AN answered that "we have yet to see a benefit of
addi tional guides selecting an intensive nanagenent area.” He
gave an exanple where guides that have hunted in a now
designated intensive nmnmanagenent area are having difficulty
finding the nunber of bears that they were able to find before
the area was listed as such. He said that ADF&G m ght help
answer Representative Seaton's question.

1: 53: 49 PM

CO CHAIR SAMUELS said that the intent of the provision is to
allow a guide to operate in one of the intensive nanagenent
areas without having to give up the three areas the guide has
al ready sel ect ed.

REPRESENTATI VE LEDOUX asked if any provision in the bill
prot ected popul ar areas from bei ng over sel ected.

1: 55: 55 PM

HOUSE RES COW TTEE - 9- February 2, 2005



MR. FITH AN said there currently are exclusive guide-use areas
in NPS preserves, FW5 refuges, and on sone USFS | ands, but it is
a "free-for-all" on state lands. He said there is one place in
the current bill where the board could address that. DNR coul d
work with the board and develop an allocation system on state
| ands, but the bill doesn't require the board to do that.

1: 57: 35 PM

EMORY CHUCK WHEELER, Cui de, Nonme, sees HB 76 as an "enforcenent
bill only, unfortunately." He added that the new board should
not set up a code of ethics because the Al aska Professional
Hunters Association already has one. He believes that there are
a "few bad apples,” but he sees HB 76 as an infringenent on the
i ndustry. He said the state will not get the noney to enforce
it. He said "all the brown shirts are now blue shirts,” and
their focus is on donestic violence and drugs. "We don't have
any law enforcenent for wldlife anynore,” he said, and that
there is no noney in the legislation for enforcenent.

2:00: 28 PM

Dl CK ROHRER, Cuide, Kodi ak, encouraged the conmmttee to pass the
bill out of conmttee today. He said he has been a guide out of
Kodi ak for a long tine.

2:01:35 PM

MATT ROBUS, Director, Division of WIldlife Conservation, Al aska
Departnent of Fish & Gane (ADF&G5, said the details of this bill
have been worked on by the |egislature, ADF&G the D vision of
Qccupational Licensing, the Departnent of Public Safety, and,
perhaps, DNR and that the Al aska Departnent of Fish & Gane and
the Board of Gane are supportive. He said that since the
sunsetting of the previous board there have been user conflicts.
The Board of Gane has had trouble solving the conplicated
probl ens, he said, and creating the new board would allow the
two boards to specialize in their areas of expertise and form a
cooperative system

2:05:13 PM
REPRESENTATI VE SEATON asked if M. Robus thought that the

addi tional guide-use areas allowed under the predator control
provision wll be used, and if ADF&G wants it in the bill.

HOUSE RES COW TTEE -10- February 2, 2005



MR. ROBUS responded that the provision was one of several
scenarios for reducing predators in areas where prey densities
are depressed. The Board of Game liberalized brown bear hunting
with a year-round season and |iberal bag limts, with little, if
any, effect on the ungul ate herds. The trick, he said, is to
attract nore hunters to areas where bears are not particularly
desired by them and this incentive of a fourth area m ght help.
He said there is no track record of it working, but he believes
ADF&G woul d want to keep the provision in the bill

2:08: 02 PM

REPRESENTATI VE SEATON asked about aerial wolf hunting as rel ated
to this provision.

MR. ROBUS answered that such progranms are not termed "hunting."
The departnent does it through a permt system whereby people
"becone agents of the state to conduct control prograns,” so it
would be unlikely that the departnment would issue permts for
gui ded wol f hunts. He said that the economcs of a bear hunt
are higher than a wolf hunt and woul d be nore successful.

REPRESENTATI VE SEATON asked if the provision would allow nore
than four areas for a guide.

MR ROBUS said he didn't know.

CO CHAIR RAMRAS asked if the former comercial guide services
board was an effective tool when it did operate.

MR ROBUS believed it was.
2:10: 28 PM

REPRESENTATI VE GATTO asked M. Robus if he said that a predator
control hunter was acting as an agent for the state.

MR. ROBUS said the departnment does not consider predator control
to be hunting, so it is not regulated as hunting. He said it is
a permt system which can be carefully controll ed. The agents
keep animals they take, but it is not a hunt. The pelt is the
only conpensation the agent receives.

2:11:39 PM

CO- CHAI R RAMRAS asked if soneone would make a nmotion that HB 76
nove from House Resources.

HOUSE RES COW TTEE -11- February 2, 2005



REPRESENTATI VE SEATON asked to have sonme conmittee discussion
first, and then expressed his desire to nake sure the witten
testinmony gets put into the record. He also wanted
clarification of the difference between a normal guided hunt
under HB 76 and a permtted predator control operation.

MR. ROBUS explained that the aerial wolf control prograns are
conducted through a permt operation that is separate from HB

76. This bill would allow a guide into an extra area if he or
she wanted to take a client into an intensive nanagenment area
for a normal hunt. This would help bring nore hunting pressure

on the predators.
2:14:31 PM

ROB HARDY, Guide, Nelchina Basin, said he was a permtted gunner
in the wolf control program and he expressed his concern that
the legislation does not do anything for subsistence users or to
reduce conflict between users, or to reduce the "unprecedented
expansi on, congesti on, and inpact that the industry is

having..." He added that "it also does virtually nothing to
address dwindling resources and to slow the overwhelmng growh
of the industry.” He recomended that the committee adopt

alternative legislation or anendnents to address these issues
and to add "trophy fees" to provide additional funding to ADF&G
which could be used for the devel opnent and enhancenent of the
resource. He believes the industry should pay for the privilege
to access animals, and he proposed a user fee for each aninal
that is harvested that would be equal to or greater than the sum
of the individual non-resident big gane tag...

COCHAIR RAMRAS interjected and told M. Hardy that the
commttee had a copy of his witten testinony and that
Represent ati ve Seaton was making sure it got into the record.

2:18: 14 PM

CO CHAIR SAMUELS said that this bill does not do nmuch, but it is
a first step to fix the industry's problens. The bill gives
authorities to a board that can concentrate on the issues that
M. Hardy brought up. He said it is inportant for HB 76 to nove
forward so that the board it creates can nove forward with the
i ssues facing the industry.

2:20: 00 PM

HOUSE RES COW TTEE -12- February 2, 2005



CO CHAI R RAMVRAS agreed that work will get done after "hopefully"
re-establishing a bi g gamne boar d. Co- Chai r Rant as
unsuccessful ly att enpt ed to cont act Mar k Wagner by
tel econference, and then cl osed public coment.

REPRESENTATI VE SEATON clarified that his question regarding
transporters was answered.

2:21:27 PM

REPRESENTATI VE ELKINS noved to report HB 76 out of comittee
with individual recomendations and the acconpanying fiscal
not es.

2:22: 00 PM

There being no objection, HB 76 [24-LS0332\G was reported from
t he House Resources Standing Committee.

The commttee took an at-ease from2:22 PMto 2:28 PM

HB 107- ATTY FEES: HUNTI NG FI SHI NG | NTERFERENCE

CO CHAI R RAMRAS announced that the next order of business would
be HOUSE BILL NO 107 "An Act providing for the award of full
actual attorney fees and costs to a person aggrieved by unl awf ul
obstruction or hindrance of hunting, fishing, or viewi ng of fish
or gane; anending Rules 79 and 82, Alaska Rules of Cvil
Procedure; and anending Rule 508, Alaska Rules of Appellate
Procedure. "

2:29: 34 PM

JIM POUND, Staff of Representative Ranras, stated that HB 107
was created to address a growi ng concern that people have been
obstructed from hunting, trapping, and wldlife view ng. He
said that when an obstruction takes place under current |aw an
of fender can be charged in crimnal court, and he or she can
also be charged in a civil case by an aggrieved person. He
stated that juries have awarded as nuch as $200,000 to the
aggrieved, but under the current system full attorney fees and
costs are not necessarily awarded. M. Pound opined that this
has a "chilling effect” on people taking their cases to a civi

court because they m ght end up paying their own attorney fees.

2:31: 13 PM

HOUSE RES COW TTEE -13- February 2, 2005



REPRESENTATI VE SEATON asked if there are other circunstances in
which all attorney fees are nmandated to be paid.

MR. POUND responded that if a case goes beyond superior court,
there may be a full award of attorney fees for the appeal.

REPRESENTATI VE SEATON clarified his question, and pointed out
that this is a single statute which overrides Rule 82 of the
Alaska Rules of Cvil Procedure and wanted to know if it
occurred el sewhere in the | aw.

MR POUND said he is not sure, and he suspects Rule 82 was
created because "there was a point in tinme when we were | ooking
at attorney fees that may have been going beyond the call of
what was consi dered reasonable, and this |anguage may have been
actually put into the court rules by the legislature to help cut

that down, and | would suspect in certain civil cases that
attorney fees may nmount to a level of where they mght be
consi dered unreasonabl e. | don't believe in this particular

instance of hunting, fishing, or trapping we're going to be
dealing with that type of situation.”

2:33:31 PM
REPRESENTATI VE ELKINS asked if a person was "calling up a npose"

and another hunter shot the npose, would that be considered
obstruction under this bill

MR. POUND responded that this "has to do with people clearing
trap lines" and people walking in front of an aninmal to protect

it from being shot, "that 1is how the determnation of
obstruction would be. Same thing with wildlife viewng where
people will try to chase off the wildlife..."

REPRESENTATI VE ELKINS said it happened in Fairbanks, "the guy
went to court and spent a |ot of noney... He ended up being
prosecuted by the state over it because he got a little bit
excited, but he won the case against the state.”

MR. POUND said that that case established a precedent for what
is and is not an obstruction.

REPRESENTATI VE LEDOUX asked how big of a problem obstruction is.
MR, POUND answered that it does not occur often. He said there

are people with "radical attitudes" who have decided they are
going to manage fish and gane, and they are doing it through

HOUSE RES COW TTEE -14- February 2, 2005



prot est. He said one concern is that a person wll get shot.
He cited a theoretical exanple of a tourist spending noney to
watch wildlife and the tourist is hindered by another person.
He said the tourist could go through a crimnal process, but "to
take it to civil, it's going to cost noney out of [his]
i ndi vi dual pocket to do so. And it is sonmething that 1is
starting to grow. "

2:37: 04 PM

COCHAIR RAMRAS asked if it is fair to say that people
practicing civil disobedience in the wild may harm t hensel ves.

MR. POUND said "there's always a possibility when you get out
into the wld of being harned." He added that the bill gives
the individual who is being obstructed another avenue to gain
full conpensation fromthe |oss.

REPRESENTATI VE CRAWFCORD said a few years ago he and a hunting
partner were noose hunting and his partner shot a noose, and it
wal ked off and died in the soneone's private vyard. The
| andowner would not let themretrieve the noose. Wuld that be
obstruction under this bill? Representative Cawford asked.

MR. POUND said he would yield that question to an attorney.
2:39: 06 PM
LANCE  NELSON, Seni or  Assi st ant Attorney General, Nat ur al

Resources Section, Ofice of the Attorney General, Anchorage,
said he wanted to discuss Section 2 and Section 3 of HB 107

whi ch address two court rule amendnents: Rules 79 and 82. He
said the Departnent of Law doesn't believe those sections are
necessary for this bill because "Section 1 provisions are a
substitute rather than procedural and thus we believe [are]
wi thin the independent power of the legislature.” He said Rule
82 begins by saying "except as otherw se provided by the law "
So it would not require a rule change. He said that the "two

thirds vote requirenment” of Article IV of the state constitution
woul d not apply.

2:41:51 PM

COCHAIR RAMRAS asked if Section 2 and Section 3 are
unnecessary.

MR. NELSON replied in the affirmative.

HOUSE RES COW TTEE -15- February 2, 2005



REPRESENTATI VE SEATON asked if getting attorney fees w thout any
reasonabl e standard appears in other sections of the | aw

MR. NELSON said there is a "comon |aw provision by the suprene
court” to award full cost of attorney fees in cases brought by a
public interest litigant who prevails in an action against the
state. He said this would "probably" be applied simlarly.

2:42: 55 PM

REPRESENTATI VE SEATON asked if |anguage regardi ng reasonabl eness
of attorney fees is not applicable for HB 107 as well as for
public interest litigation.

MR. NELSON answered that trial courts believe they have the
authority to review the attorney fees clainmns of successful
litigants and elimnate fees that aren't substantiated. "
woul d predict that Section 1 provisions would be applied the
sane way--that conpletely unreasonable or undocunented or
unsubstantiated clains under HB 107" would be questioned and

revi enwed. But, he added, generally the courts have been very
gener ous.

2:44: 46 PM

JENNI FER YUHAS, Executive Director, Alaska Qutdoor Council,
expressed her support for the |egislation. She stated that
current statute does not guarantee a citizen wll be awarded
attorney fees, and this bill wll bring about a necessary
correction to an oversight. She said obstruction cases are

rare, but this legislation would be a deterrent "to those
wi shing to obstruct the lawful use of fish and game resources.”
She asked for speedy passage of the bill. She added that a
representative of the Alaska WIdlife Conservation Association
asked her to relate his support of HB 107.

2.:46: 34 PM

CO CHAI R RAMRAS cl osed public testinony.

REPRESENTATI VE LEDOUX said she supports the bill but wondered if
it would be fair to provide attorney fees to whoever is the

wi nner of the lawsuit to protect against frivolous |awsuits.

2:47: 59 PM

HOUSE RES COW TTEE -16- February 2, 2005



REPRESENTATI VE LEDOUX said she would like to offer that as a
conceptual anendnent.

MR. POUND said "the passage of who receives what is normally
handl ed by the courts.” Rule 508 has to do with affirmation of
judgment, and he read: "In all cases of affirmance of a judgnent
or any order or decision of the superior court, costs shall be
allowed to the appellee or respondent unless otherw se ordered
by the court." M. Pound said that the awarding of fees is
handl ed t hrough the existing court rules.

REPRESENTATI VE LEDOUX understood that the awarding of fees is
normal |y subject to Rule 82 which also allows for attorney fees
for a defendant, and, she said, Rule 82 allows for paynent of
partial attorney fees--they are not normally actual fees unless
the statute woul d provide for actual attorney fees.

MR. POUND stated that the statute would give actual attorney
fees and costs, and he added that Rule 82 specifically states
that the award is for the prevailing party.

REPRESENTATI VE SEATON said M. Nelson told the conmttee that it
is not a procedural question, which would be covered by Rule 82.
He said the bill is establishing a "substantive provision" that
actual full attorney fees would be awarded and only to the
person aggrieved of the violation. Represent ati ve Seat on
agreed with Representative LeDoux because Rule 82 will no | onger
apply. He said the bill needs to be bal anced.

REPRESENTATI VE LEDOUX said she read the bill to say that the
plaintiff can get full attorney fees, and the defendant would be
subject to Rule 82.

2:52:21 PM

REPRESENTATI VE SEATON pointed out that HB 107 overrides
reasonabl eness in statute, and takes away the court's latitude
to adjust for reasonabl eness.

MR. NELSON agreed that Representative LeDoux is correct that
persons who bring a case and are successful in proving they were
aggrieved by a violation of AS 16.05.790 would be able to cover
full actual attorney fees, and if they were not successful the
ot her person would be limted by Rule 82.

HOUSE RES COW TTEE -17- February 2, 2005



CO-CHAIR RAMRAS asked that if a commttee substitute deleted
Sections 2 and 3, would the defendant still be entitled to Rule
82.

MR. NELSON sai d yes.
2:54:. 32 PM

REPRESENTATI VE LEDOUX asked for clarification of Representative
Ranr as' questi on.

CO CHAI R RAMRAS responded that "the A.G is saying that Section
2 and Section 3 may not be necessary for HB 107. So | think
that what we're going to try and do today is pass HB 107 out,
we'll review it, and could be that when we get to Judiciary
we'll just delete Section 2 and Section 3..."

REPRESENTATI VE KAPSNER interjected saying that was not a good
idea. "I think that we have a duty...to pass out the best piece
of legislation that we can,"” she said.

REPRESENTATI VE LEDOUX asked if Section 2 were elimnated, then
woul d Rul e 82 not apply to the defendant.

REPRESENTATI VE SEATON said he thought M. Nelson was saying that
the conmttee is doing substantive law, and it has no effect on
Rul e 82. The only reason to elimnate Sections 2 and 3 is to
make it consistent with other |egislation.

REPRESENTATI VE LEDOUX said she understood that, but it doesn't
address the concern of the disparity of the plaintiff and
defendant's rights.

The commttee took an at-ease from2:57 PMto 2:59 PM
2:58: 41 PM

REPRESENTATI VE ELKINS asked if HB 107 would apply to conmerci al
fishing.

CO- CHAIR RAMRAS said he believes it applies only to hunters,
trappers, and wildlife viewers.

REPRESENTATI VE KAPSNER pointed out that "fishing" is in the
title.

HOUSE RES COW TTEE - 18- February 2, 2005



REPRESENTATI VE LEDOUX said that since it applies to commercia
fishing, she is concerned about the seining industry in which
people are "corking each other off," and she said she hates to
see one being able to get actual attorney fees and the other
not .

REPRESENTATI VE CRAWORD went back to his exanple and asked if he
could get full attorney fees if he won a lawsuit and if the
person defending his property rights could only get 30 percent.

REPRESENTATI VE KAPSNER asked M. Nelson if private property
rights supersede this |egislation.

MR. NELSON answered that he didn't think it applied to people
who post their property with no trespassing or no hunting signs.
Once a hunter shoots an aninmal it beconmes his or her property
which mekes it nore conplicated, he said, and nornally soneone

would be entitled to go on to private land to retrieve his or
her property.

3:02:46 PM
CO- CHAlI R RAMRAS announced that HB 107 woul d be held over.
ADJ OQURNIVENT

There being no further business before the commttee, the House
Resources Standing Committee neeting was adjourned at 3:03 p.m

HOUSE RES COW TTEE -19- February 2, 2005



